
Please note: Certain or all items on this agenda may be recorded. 

 
Agenda compiled by: 
Andrew Booth 
Governance Services 
Civic Hall 
LEEDS LS1 1UR 
Tel: 24 74325 
 

 
 

 
Principal Scrutiny Advisor: 
Steven Courtney 
Tel: 24 74707 

  Produced on Recycled Paper 

 
A 

 

 

 

JOINT HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
(YORKSHIRE & THE HUMBER) 

 

 
Meeting to be held in Civic Hall, Leeds on 
Thursday, 29th September at 10.00 am 
Pre-meeting for all Members at 9.30 a.m. 

 

 
MEMBERSHIP 

 
Councillors 

 
S Ali - Rotherham MBC 

J Bromby - North Lincolnshire CC 

D Brown - Hull City Council 

J Clark - North Yorkshire CC 

M Gibbons - Bradford MDC 

R Goldthorpe - Calderdale MDC 

B Hall - East Riding of Yorkshire CC 

L Mulherin (Chair) - Leeds City Council 

T Revill - Doncaster MBC 

B Rhodes - Wakefield MDC 

I Saunders - Sheffield City Council 

L Smaje - Kirklees MDC 

K Wilson - NE Lincolnshire CC 

S Wiseman - NE Lincolnshire CC 

                              J  Worton - Barnsley MBC 

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

B 

A G E N D A 
 
 

Item 
No 

Ward/Equal 
Opportunities 

Item Not 
Open 

 Page 
No 

1   
 

  APPEALS AGAINST REFUSAL OF INSPECTION 
OF DOCUMENTS 
 
To consider any appeals in accordance with 
Procedure Rule 25* of the Access to Information 
Procedure Rules (in the event of an Appeal the 
press and public will be excluded). 
 
(*In accordance with Procedure Rule 25, notice of 
an appeal must be received in writing by the Chief 
Democratic Services Officer at least 24 hours 
before the meeting.) 
 
 

 

2   
 

  EXEMPT INFORMATION - POSSIBLE 
EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 
1 To highlight reports or appendices which 

officers have identified as containing exempt 
information, and where officers consider that 
the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in 
disclosing the information, for the reasons 
outlined in the report. 

 
2 To consider whether or not to accept the 

officers recommendation in respect of the 
above information. 

 
3 If so, to formally pass the following 

resolution:- 
 
 RESOLVED – That the press and public be 

excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following parts of the 
agenda designated as containing exempt 
information on the grounds that it is likely, in 
view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or the nature of the proceedings, 
that if members of the press and public were 
present there would be disclosure to them of 
exempt information, as follows:- 

 
 

 



 

 
C 

3   
 

  LATE ITEMS 
 
To identify items which have been admitted to the 
agenda by the Chair for consideration. 
 
(The special circumstances shall be specified in 
the minutes.) 
 
 

 

4   
 

  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
To declare any personal/prejudicial interests for the 
purpose of Section 81 (3) of the Local Government 
Act 2000 
 

 

5   
 

  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND 
NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTES 
 
To receive any apologies for absence and 
notification of substitutes. 
 
 

 

6   
 

  PROPOSED RECONFIGURATION OF 
CHILDREN'S CONGENITAL HEART SERVICES 
IN ENGLAND: ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 
To receive and consider the report of the Head of 
Scrutiny and Member Development 
 

1 - 28 

7   
 

  REVIEW OF CHILDREN'S CONGENITAL HEART 
SERVICES IN ENGLAND: FINAL REPORT 
(DRAFT) 
 
To receive and consider the attached report of the 
Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 
 

29 - 
32 

8   
 

  DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 
 
To be confirmed 
 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Yorkshire and the 
Humber) 

Date: 29 September 2011 

Subject:  Proposed Reconfiguration of Children’s Congenital Heart Services in 
England: Additional Information 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: Not applicable 

Appendix number: Not applicable 

Summary of main issues  

1. The Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee HOSC (Yorkshire and the Humber) 
forms the statutory overview and scrutiny body to consider and respond to the proposed 
reconfiguration of Children’s Congenital Heart Services in England – taking into account 
the potential impact on children and families across the region.   

 
2. In considering the proposals set out in the Safe and Sustainable Consultation 

Document: A new vision for Children’s Congenital Heart Services in England (March 
2011), and as part of the public consultation on the future of Children’s Congenital 
Heart Services in England, HOSCs have been given until 5 October 2011 to respond to 
the proposals. 

 
3. In considering the proposals and the associated impacts the Joint HOSC has sought to 

consider a wide range of evidence and engage with a number of key stakeholders.   
 
4. The purpose of this report is to present any further / additional information that the Joint 

Committee has requested but not yet considered.  On behalf of the Joint HOSC further 
information has been requested, as follows: 

 
Children’s Heart Federation 
 

5. Details of the survey work undertaken, including the survey report / analysis. Some 
details have been available on the website: http://www.childrens-heart-
fed.org.uk/news/safe_and_sustainable_childrens_heart_surgery_services and are 
attached at Appendix 1 for consideration.   

 
 

 Report author:  Steven Courtney 

Tel:  24 74707 

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



 

 
6. However, the detailed survey report / analysis is not available online and a request for 

this information was made through a web-form (on 8 September 2011) available on the 
above website. 

 
Health Impact Assessment (HIA) Interim Report 

 
7. The Health Impact Assessment (HIA) Interim Report produced by Mott MacDonald 

presents the following information in terms of vulnerable groups: 
 

• Children (under 16s)* who are the primary recipient of the services under review 
and, therefore, most sensitive to service changes; 

• People who experience socio-economic deprivation; 

• People from Asian ethnic groups, particularly those with an Indian, Pakistani, 
Bangladeshi and other Indian subcontinent heritage; 

• Mothers who smoke during pregnancy; and 

• Mothers who are obese during pregnancy; 
 
These groups are defined as vulnerable groups because they are more likely to 
need the services under review and, are most likely to experience 
disproportionate impacts. 

 
8. The HIA states that there are currently 2745 patients in vulnerable postcode districts.  

The report also  sets out the likely travel and access impacts on vulnerable groups / 
postcode districts (based on current patient activity) under each of the proposed options 
(A-D).  Information has been requested about how this analysis relates to specifically to 
Yorkshire and the Humber and will be provided as soon as possible. 

 
9. Confirmation has also been sought  on whether or not the analysis presented in the HIA 

Interim report reflects the presumed patient flow/ travel data or takes account of any of 
the work around testing the assumptions currently being undertaken by Price 
Waterhouse Coopers. 

 
Information from other Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
 

10. Information has been provided from both City of Bradford MDC and East Riding of 
Yorkshire Council, as follows: 

 
11. local authority HOSCsis also made available for consideration by the Joint HOSC: 
 

City of Bradford MDC: Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (15 September 
2011) – resolved:  
 
1. That, having given this matter much consideration, from the options proposed 

within the consultation, the Committee unanimously endorses Option D and 
recommends this as the option to be taken forward. 
 

2. In reaching its decision the Committee are mindful that there has been a severe 
lack of critical information being presented in a timely manner. Dependant on 
information yet to be submitted it is possible that a further Children’s Heart 
Surgical Centre may be required to meet demand. 
 
 
 

Page 2



 

 
3. That the Committee notes with extreme dismay that only a few days will be 

available to the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Yorkshire and 
Humber) to make its recommendations once it has received information 
requested from the Joint Committee of Primary Care Trusts 

 
East Riding of Yorkshire: The Health, Care and Wellbeing Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee (13 September 2011) – resolved:   
 
That the Sub-Committee support the retention of children’s cardiac surgery services 
at Leeds General Infirmary to deliver children’s cardiac surgery services.  

 
Further information 

 
12. Any additional information received will be presented to the meeting. 
 
Recommendations 
 
13. Members are asked to consider the details associated with this report and identify/ 

agree any specific matters for inclusion in the Committee’s report, which features 
elsewhere on the agenda and is due to be presented to JCPCT later in the year. 

 
 
Background documents  

• A new vision for Children’s Congenital Heart Services in England (March 2011) 

 

 

 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

Findings of Children’s Heart Federation survey of  
parents’ priorities for children’s heart surgery services  

Presented by Anne Keatley-Clarke, CHF Chief Executive, 
at the NHS Safe and Sustainable Children’s Heart Surgery Services Stakeholder Event, 

London, 22 October 2009

Children’s Heart Federation – representing parents’ views 

The Children’s Heart Federation consists of 22 groups all with an interest in 

congenital heart conditions and most are either condition specific or location 

specific. They are all, with two exceptions led by parents, the exceptions being 

GUCH Patients Association which is led by adults living with congenital heart 

disease and Tiny Tickers led by professional specialising in ante-natal 

screening.  

Children’s Heart Federation is tasked with representing the views of its 

members, a task that can sometimes be very challenging – especially when 

not all of our members agree. It can, sometimes, be an uncomfortable place to 

be. However, as far as today is concerned we have almost complete 

agreement on one matter at this that what every parent wants is excellent care 

for their child.  

Satisfaction with current services – concern for the future 

What’s more the vast majority of parents whose children have recently or are 

currently receiving treatment are very satisfied with the care that their heart-

child has received.   

However some of us are aware that in some places the current service is 

dependent on the goodwill of existing surgeons and their teams to work 

demanding rotas that go beyond their contracts in order to provide cover- 

particularly for emergency surgery.  

We don’t believe this can continue and have been campaigning for changes to 

ensure a sustainable service for the heart children of the future which is not 

reliant on old fashioned working practices that involves surgeons working in 

relative isolation. We want a service that facilitates the training of new 

surgeons and enables them to be mentored by more experienced colleagues 

so that they can safely develop their skills and we want to see them working in 

centres where there is sufficient clinical volume for the development of new 

 
 
CHF is federation with 
22 member groups 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
All parents want 
excellent care for their 
child 
 
 
 
 
 
 
85% parents very 
satisfied and 12% fairly 
satisfied with treatment 
child received at main 
surgical centre 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Future children’s heart 
surgery service must 
enable surgeons to 
build up and maintain 
their skills 

Page 5



2 

technologies and treatment.  

We realise that because the number of operations remain constant the current 

proposals are likely to result in larger but fewer surgical centres. We are aware 

that this is causing concern to some parents. 

Some families may have to travel further but many of our families already 

travel a significant distance. This map (see slide 2) shows where the existing 

centres are – and you can see that it is not a local service – although to 

families who live close to a centre it will feel local.  

Organisation of survey 

Aware that parents reactions to the proposals will differ according to their 

experience, we thought it timely to get the views of as wide a number of 

parents as possible to ensure that their views are being represented. So, we 

commissioned Ipsos MORI to undertake the research with parents of heart-

children to capture their views on proposed changes to the structure of 

children’s heart surgery services in England. 

We distributed by post and email a short self-completion questionnaire to both 

our own family contacts and the members of the Groups that make-up the 

Children’s Heart Federation and its member organisations. In addition, 

discussion groups were held at our Federation Day in mid-September.  

Half our member groups participated, and 5500 questionnaires were sent by 

post and e-mail. Those receiving the postal questionnaire were also given the 

option to complete the questionnaire online.  

Profile of respondents 

Over 1000 replies were received - nearly all from parents, the majority of which 

were mothers aged between 35-44 years old. The respondents were spread 

across all regions of the UK, with particular concentrations in the South East 

(21%), East Midlands (13%) and East of England (11%). Although the 

proposals only apply to surgical centres in England, a small number of 

responses were received from Wales (3%), Scotland (2%) and Northern 

Ireland (1%). 

When interpreting the findings from the survey, it is important to remember that 

postal surveys are liable to ‘non-response bias’: so, those with stronger 

Level of operations for 
congenital heart disease 
in children remaining 
constant 
 
 
 
Children’s heart surgery 
service is not a local 
service 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Independent research 
agency Ipsos MORI ran 
and analysed the survey 
for CHF 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Findings based on 
1013 survey responses 
and focus group 
discussions 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Responses related to all 
surgical centres in 
England 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
People with strongest 
views most likely to 
reply 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



3 

positive or negative views are more likely to reply. 

High support for changes and agreement with need 

The findings of the research demonstrate overwhelming support for the 

proposed changes, with more than 73% of parents saying that they agree with 

the changes (see slide 3). 

While agreement with the need for the changes is lower, it is still high at 65%. 

As would be expected, those who think the changes will have a positive impact 

were more likely to agree with the changes (88% compared to 11%) and the 

need for changes (79% compared to 15%) than those who do not.  

Those who believe it is reasonable to ask parents to travel further are also 

more likely to agree with the changes (87% compared to 29%) and the need 

for the changes (77% compared to 31%) than those who think it will have a 

negative impact. 

Household income influences views 

People on low incomes were less likely to agree with the changes than those 

who were on higher incomes.  

Amongst those with a household income over £50,000, 80% agree with the 

changes.  This falls to 62% of those with incomes under £9,499 and 69% of 

those whose household income is £9,500 - £17,499. 

Need for more information  

Parents were asked whether they understood the changes, and if not what 

needed further explanation. The majority (78%) understood the changes. 

However a small number of people felt there were issues that needed further 

explanation and it is useful to look at what the minority say because it 

highlights the areas of concern. 

The issues fell into two groups, the first related to the proposals rather than 

gaps in knowledge and covered issues such as  

• Wanting to know how parents will cope with long distance travel and the 

stress of being far from home (5%) 

• Needing a clear explanation for change because they are happy with the 

 
 
 
 
More than 73% parents 
agreed with changes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
65% resondents agreed 
with need for changes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
People on low incomes 
less likely to agree with 
changes  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
78% respondents 
understood the changes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



4 

excellent care they received (3%) 

• Understanding but disagreeing with the proposed changes.(2%) 

Whereas the second group of issues related to a need for more information 

about the detail of the proposed changes and how the changes will impact on 

families and focused on the detail of the proposals and the practicalities the 

arrangements.   

Parents  wanted more information on  

• How many centres there will be and where 

• How the changes will impact on treatment and whether there will there be 

guarantee of life saving treatments? 

• How families’ need for support will be met – particularly the additional 

financial cost of travelling and staying away from home. 

A few parents express concerns about the motivation for the reorganisation of 

the service and wondered whether it was about cost-cutting rather than 

improving care and outcomes for patients.  

Good for clinical outcomes (see slide 4) 

When considering the impact of the changes, the vast majority of parents 

(77%) believe the changes will have a positive impact on clinical outcomes for 

children with around three in ten believe it will have a very positive effect 

(29%). Only 6% believe it will have a negative impact on clinical outcomes.  

However, amongst those who disagree with the changes, views that it will 

impact negatively on clinical outcomes are much higher (43% believe it will 

have a negative impact, compared to just 1% of those who agree with the 

changes).  

Families with children whose main treatment centre is in the South are 

significantly more likely to believe larger centres will have a negative impact on 

clinical outcomes than respondents at any other treatment centre. The South 

includes the centres at Bristol, Oxford and Southampton. Of those being 

treated in the South, 22% believe it will have a negative impact, compared to 

5% being treated in the Midlands and 4% in the North, London and South 

West. This is a striking difference. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Concern about cost-
cutting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
77% believe impact will 
be positive on clinical 
outcomes 
 
6% believe impact will 
be negative on clinical 
outcomes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Large variance between 
views of parents from 
South and other regions 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



5 

Reasonable to travel (see slide 5) 

There was a general consensus that that it is reasonable to expect 

parents/carers and their child to travel further for treatment, with seven in ten 

respondents stating this (71%). A minority (18%) believe it is unreasonable.   

Eight in every ten family (80%) whose main treatment centre is London say it is 

reasonable to ask parents to travel further, significantly higher than all other 

treatment centres excluding the Midlands. Whereas respondents whose main 

treatment centre is in the South are most likely to feel it is unreasonable, with 

nearly four in every ten stating this (37%), nevertheless the majority, albeit a 

smaller one, feel it is reasonable to travel. 

The support evident in London may be due to these respondents already 

travelling to access their services. The number of respondents reporting 

postcodes in the London area is lower than the number who report their main 

treatment centre as London (86 compared to 410), suggesting that a large 

number are travelling into London. If they are already travelling for care they 

are perhaps more likely to believe it is reasonable to do so as it is routine for 

them. 

Families with a household income is below £9,499 per annum are more likely 

to believe it is unreasonable to ask parents to travel further, 28% say this 

compared to 14% of those whose household income is over £30,000 per 

annum. The number of respondents who earn less than £9,499 per annum 

was small (60 respondents) and therefore these results should be treated with 

caution. It does, however, suggest a link a between income and travel, which 

may be about the ability to travel rather than willingness.  

Biggest problems if fewer, larger centres (see slide 6)

Parents were then asked what their biggest problems would be if they had to 

travel further and stay overnight. Some questionnaires enabled parents to 

choose three options, others just one.  

Amongst those who chose up to three options, the main problems were if the 

centre did not have suitable accommodation for parents (67%) and families 

(50%) to stay overnight, followed by lack of childcare (35%) and the cost of 

journey (32%). Difficulty getting more time off work was also an issue for three 

in ten of families (29%).  

71% believe it is 
reasonable to expect 
travel to surgical centre 
 
18% believe it is 
unreasonable to expect 
travel 
 
 
 
Parents travelling to 
London centres more 
accepting of travel 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Low income families 
less supportive of 
increased travel 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Top five problems if 
travelling further: 
 

• Overnight 
accommodation for 
parents 

 

 

• Overnight 
accommodation for 
families 

 
 

• Childcare 
 

 

• Increased time off 
work 

 

• Cost of travel 
 

Page 9



6 

Those who disagree with the changes were more likely to cite the cost of the 

journey (48%), difficulty getting time off work (50%), and not having a car (14% 

compared to 7% of all the replies) as some of the biggest problems.  

Those who felt it was unreasonable to ask parents to travel further were 

significantly more likely to report difficulties getting more time off work as a 

problem, with 42% stating this as a problem compared to 25% of those who 

felt it was reasonable. 

Those who were only able to choose one option also saw accommodation as a 

key issue (see slide 7). Over half chose the centre not having suitable 

accommodation for parents (54%), while nearly three in ten (29%) said not 

having suitable accommodation for families would be the biggest problem. 

These comparisons demonstrate the importance of suitable accommodation, 

but also show that childcare and finances are also important. 

Priorities around surgery (see slide 8) 

In order to establish a feeling for what the most important considerations 

around surgery were, parents were asked to rate a number of factors around 

the period of time during and immediately after the child’s surgery for 

importance, on a scale of 1 to 10.  

The mean scores show parent’s main priorities:  

• Most important is “the surgical team’s good record of survival and quality of 

life outcomes for patients five years on from their surgery”.  

This is closely followed by 

•  “the need for their child to be treated by a surgical team who have 

performed similar surgical procedures in the past 12 months” and  

• Provision of “24 hour, 7 days a week service”,  

The only option presented to receive a mean score of less than 8 was that “the 

surgical centre is near to the child’s home”, with a mean score of 5.9 

However, those who disagree with the changes and the need for the changes 

rated “the surgical centre is near to the child’s home” significantly higher than 

those who agree. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Accommodation is 
biggest single problem 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Priorities around 
surgery: 

• Survival and quality 
of life 

• Experienced team 

• Suitable 
accommodation 

• 24 hour, 7 days a 
week surgical 
service 

• Facilities for 
mothers of newborn 
babies 

• Other specialists on 
hand 

• Environment suits 
child’s age 

• Surgical centre 
close to home 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



7 

Those who believe the changes will have a negative impact and that it is 

unreasonable to ask parents to travel further also gave a significantly higher 

score (8.2 and 8.1 respectively). 

Priorities after surgery (see slide 9) 

Parents were also asked to choose their top three options which are the most 

important and rank them in order.  

Communication between services appears to be the key issue: “Surgical 

centres and local units share information and communicate well” ranked highly 

as did the “provision of a smooth transition to adult services”.  

Older parents, those aged over 45 were more likely to rate the transition option 

highly, probably because they are most likely to have children going through 

transition, or have had children who have already gone through it.  

Those who disagree with the changes and who believe they will have a 

negative impact are more likely to rate “follow up care is provided close to the 

child’s home” higher. 

Similarly, those who disagree with the need for the changes rate follow up care 

more highly than those who agree with the need for change.  

This indicates that concerns around follow up care may be a driver for 

disagreeing with the changes and underlines the importance of ensuring 

information is given around what services will remain locally. 

Other important issues (see slide 10) 

Finally, parents were asked if there were any issues important to them that had 

been missed from those given. The majority (65%) did not give an answer to 

this. However it is helpful to look at the responses that were given because it 

identifies areas of concern.  

Communication again emerges as a particular concern, both explicitly 

identified and implied in answers such as ‘’having the same staff as before’’ 

and ‘’having a person to seek advice’’. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Priorities after surgery: 

• Surgical centres 
and local units 
share information 
and communicate 
well  

• For older children, 
centres work jointly 
with adult 
cardiologists to 
ease transition to 
adult services  

• Follow up care 
close to child’s 
home 

• Healthcare 
professional talks 
to child’s school 

 

 

 

 

Other important issues: 

• Good links between 
local services/ 
parents/children 
and centres  

• Support/counselling 
for family  

• Better 
sharing/receiving of 
information  

• Travel stress 

• Contact number for 
nurse support 

• Continuity of care 

• Accommodation 
affordable and 
close 

• Larger centres 
impersonal 

• Good aftercare 

Page 11



8 

Treatment centres (see slide 11) 

Parents and carers of children with heart conditions were asked to complete an 

additional set of questions about their experience of current and past 

treatment.  

They were first asked what their main centre of treatment was.  

As the chart below shows, responses were received from all the main centres 

in England, with the majority coming from the London hospitals (Evelina 

Hospital, Great Ormond Street and Royal Brompton). 

They were then asked how satisfied they were with the treatment their child 

had received at this centre.  

Satisfaction with care high (see slide 12) 

The vast majority of parents are satisfied with the treatment their child received 

(98% say either fairly satisfied or very satisfied), and over eight in ten very 

satisfied (85%). Only 1% of parents are dissatisfied. 

Satisfaction with how their other needs were met is also high at 92%.  

Findings from focus groups at Federation Day 

In addition to the survey, discussion groups were also held at CHF’s annual 

“Federation Day” conference in London on 12 September 2009. The second 

half of our conference was given over to discussion of the proposed changes 

to children’s heart surgical services.  

This began with an introduction from the Safe and Sustainable Programme 

Manager, Jeremy Glyde, about the Safe and Sustainable Paediatric Cardiac 

Surgery Services programme.  

Following this, conference participants were divided into three groups to 

discuss their thoughts on the changes in more detail. These groups were 

based on knowledge, with participants divided into healthcare professionals, 

parent activists and parents.  

The Activist Group were generally parents, or former patients, who were 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Majority of responses 
from London treatment 
centres 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Only 1% parents 
dissatisfied with child’s 
treatment 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Focus groups of 
healthcare 
professionals, parent 
activists/representatives 
and parents 

 

 

 

Page 12



9 

already active in CHF campaigning activities and were familiar with the 

proposals. The parent group consisted of parents of heart children who were 

not participating in CHF’s campaigning activities and were relatively unfamiliar 

with the proposals.  

The Discussion Groups were led by researchers from Ipsos MORI and while 

representatives from the Specialist Commissioning Group and staff from 

Children’s Heart Federation observed, they did not participate in the 

discussions. Participants were guaranteed anonymity – that no comments 

would be traceable to them in Ipsos MORI’s report. 

Views varied between the three groups 

Participants’ views on the proposed changes vary between the three groups, 

which is to be expected given their different levels of knowledge and the 

different motivations between parents and healthcare professionals. 

Activists are the most accepting of the three groups and view the proposals as 

a necessary change to improve services. There is more uncertainty amongst 

healthcare professionals and parents. Amongst healthcare professionals there 

is a general sense that the case for change has not been proven and they 

want to see more evidence to prove outcomes would improve and that the 

financial implications have been fully thought through before they fully support 

it.  

Closeness to surgical centre influenced parents’ views 

A similar uncertainty and desire for more information was seen amongst 

parents, but this was a less evident theme. The parents group was particularly 

divided on how they viewed the proposed changes, whereas activists and 

healthcare professionals tended to be more in agreement with each other.  

Amongst the parent participants, there was an evident split of views that in part 

seemed to depend on how close an individual lived to their current treatment 

centre. Those who are currently living very close to their surgical centre were 

more concerned about the proposals and opposed to any change which might, 

in their view, jeopardise the care they currently receive.  

In contrast, those families who already travel some distance to reach their 

surgical centre were less opposed to the proposals in general, although still 

concerned about how they would work in practice. They were open to the idea 

but wanted more information about the detail of the proposals, the reasons 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Activists most 
accepting of proposals 

 

 

 

Healthcare 
professionals and some 
parents felt case for 
change not proven 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Parents who already 
travel were more open 
to idea of travelling 

 

 

Page 13



10 

behind it, and how it will impact on care.  

It is perhaps not surprising that those who potentially face the most change are 

more concerned about the impact of the proposals. It is this group who do not 

currently travel to their centre and benefit from having the full range of services 

close to their homes who will be most affected if surgery moves from their 

centre.   

Crucial to these parents is not just that the centre is close to their home, but 

that they and their child have a very strong personal tie with the centre, beyond 

simply the treatment it provides. Parents in the group who currently live close 

to their centre were concerned that they would lose personal relationships 

which are very important to them and help them cope with their child’s 

condition. Moving to an alien environment where they do not know the nurses 

or surgeons is a difficult prospect to deal with and one which causes anxiety. 

Particular mention here was made of Cardiac Liaison Nurses, and what would 

happen to their role under the new proposals. 

Key considerations for future plans 

Having established general perceptions of the proposals, the groups discussed 

the key considerations taken into account when designing the future plans for 

children’s heart surgical services. While the groups were looking at the 

proposals from different perspectives a general consensus across the groups 

is evident. 

The impact of a reduction in surgical centres on the skills and knowledge of 

healthcare professionals working in these centres was raised by all groups, but 

was particularly important for the healthcare professional group. While one of 

the stated aims of the proposed changes is to improve the skills and 

knowledge of surgical teams, there was concern amongst participants that 

things might get worse, at least in the short to medium-term.  

Participants raised the issue of whether all staff will be expected/willing to 

relocate to new centres, and if they are not how the services will cope with a 

reduction in trained and experienced staff. Healthcare professionals were 

particularly worried that nurses may not be willing to move or may not be 

offered re-location expenses and this would undermine care as highly 

experienced paediatric cardiac nurses leave the teams.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Strong personal tie with 
centre very highly 
valued 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Concern that expertise 
would be lost  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Doubt that staff would 
relocate 

 

 

 

 

Page 14



11 

These concerns were also evident amongst the parent group, who worried that 

surgeons will leave the service rather than move and therefore  pool of  

experienced surgeons would shrink.  

The parents also asked about whether more funding would be available to train 

surgeons and some parents felt that rather than close centres, it would be 

better to train more surgeons to work in the existing centres.  

Some felt that there were likely to be a future increase in children requiring 

surgery and cutting the number of centres would leave them unable to deal 

with this increase.  

Parents were also concerned about how the decision of which services to 

close would be made and wondered how they could be sure the process was 

independent and fair to all. 

Capacity issues, waiting times and cancellations 

There were concerns about the impact the proposals might have on waiting 

times and availability of beds. Healthcare professionals raised the issue of 

funding and whether the new centres would have the investment they needed 

to cope with increased numbers of patients.  

For example, would there be investment to increase bed availability both in the 

centre and also related services such as paediatric intensive care. Without this 

investment parents were worried that the centres would not be able to provide 

the necessary standard of care. This concern is also linked with the skills and 

knowledge issue, in that if some staff choose not to move, the centres could 

find themselves with fewer staff to provide care.  

Some parents feared that the changes could lead to increased waiting times, 

increased cancellations and a generally reduced service. They were worried 

about the impact cancellations will have on heart-children and their parents if 

they are travelling further for that treatment. 

Parents explained that cancellations are always unwelcome, but if you are 

travelling long distances and surgery is cancelled at short notice the impact is 

far greater than if you live close to a centre. Parents and children will still have 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Suggestion to build up 
rather than close 
existing teams 

 

 

 

 

 

Concern for equity 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Need for guaranteed 
investment in beds and 
related services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cancellations have 
greater impact when 
families have to travel 

 

Page 15



12 

had to meet the cost of the travel, take time off work, arrange childcare for 

other children, and undertaken the journey only to have to go back home 

again.  

Parents were very keen that if the proposals go ahead a commitment is given 

to make the necessary investment guarantee cancellations are rare. 

Communication and joint working 

Communication and joint working was an important issue to all groups and 

seen as central to making any reduction in surgical centres work.  

Healthcare professionals were concerned that some information systems 

currently in use don’t allow information sharing between different hospitals and 

GPs, patients care would therefore be more difficult as a result.  

Some centres still rely on paper files and without a shared computer-based 

system healthcare professionals feel this will make transfer of records difficult 

and therefore potentially compromise care.  

The Cardiac Liaison Nurses were particularly concerned about how they would 

be able to provide support in the way they do currently because it will be 

harder to contact/liaise with if the surgery team if they are no longer on site.  

Parents and activists were also concerned about communication and how it 

would work if surgery is not taking place in the same centre as follow up care. 

The activist group were particularly concerned that the proposals will assume 

the surgical centre is at the centre of the service hub and all other aspects of 

care will be seen as spokes coming off this hub. They argue that in fact the 

child’s paediatrician needs to be seen as the hub into which all other services 

feed in, as this is the closest point of contact to the child and the care must be 

centred on the child. They were also concerned about the care of children with 

multiple and complex needs.  

Those in the parent group who live close to their surgical centre explained that 

currently if their child has any non-heart related problems that require medical 

intervention they can easily have a qualified heart surgeon on hand to assist 

should the intervention cause complications with their heart.  

They were extremely concerned that if their centre was further away this help 

would not be available and if something should go wrong there would be 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Information systems are 
not yet robust enough 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Cardiac Liaison service 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Paediatrician should be 
hub 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Provision for 
emergencies 

Page 16



13 

nobody with the experience to fix the complications and their child could be 

severely harmed as a result.   

There is also concern over whether adult cardiac services will be located in the 

same centres as child services, and the impact this could have on the 

transition between services for older children. 

Some participants felt strongly that the proposals may impact on the ability to 

provide care which is centred around the needs of the child and his/her family. 

The parents also highlighted the importance of all aspects of care, such as 

access to dieticians, pharmacists or physiotherapists, not just the surgery, and 

raised concerns that some of this could be lost.  

Follow-up care was a hot topic for parents especially. All groups worried about 

what services will remain local and what will move, should the changes go 

ahead. Not knowing how often people might have to travel to access treatment 

and what kinds of treatment they could access locally is a key issue.   

Participants are currently unclear on whether centres will close down 

completely, and if not what centres will be left. Some participants in the parents 

group were reluctant to have to travel long distances to have shunts or 

catheters put in, while others already did this and were therefore used to doing 

so. 

Some of the healthcare professionals also speculated that there may be less 

motivation or opportunity for local staff to keep up to date with developments in 

paediatric heart services if the specialist teams move further away. They were 

concerned that this in turn would potentially impact on the level of care 

available locally. 

Financial support for families was major concern in all three groups, with all 

recognising the financial impact travelling further for treatment could have on 

parents of children with heart conditions. The key areas of concern around the 

financial impact are: 

• Cost of travelling 

• Car parking charges – which have already been addressed 

• Accommodation charges 

• Impact on earnings of time off work. 

 

 

 

 

Transition 

 

 

 

Child-centred services 

 

 

 

 

Follow-up care and 
support services 
beyond the surgical 
centre 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Financial support for 
families 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 17



14 

Participants in the activist group feel that some parents would need support to 

meet these costs.  

As well as finances, the issue of logistics around accommodation was also an 

important issue. This was a central consideration for the parent group who saw 

appropriate accommodation as vital to ensuring that parents were able to 

travel further for their child’s surgery. They described the key characteristics for 

accommodation to provide the best environment and support for families. 

These are: 

• On-ward facilities for parents to stay with a child if needed such as drop-

down beds that can be brought out of the wall at night for parents to sleep 

on. 

• Off-ward facilities for longer-term stays to allow parents to stay close to 

their child and have somewhere private to stay. Ideally these facilities 

would still be close to where the child is. 

• Family accommodation so both parents and siblings can stay close to the 

heart-child. 

• Hospital wards to be designed around the needs of the child, rather than 

adapted adult wards such as child-specific wards designed to have fewer 

beds than an adult ward in order to allow greater personalisation of the bed 

area, providing space for pictures, toys, etc. in order to  make the child feel 

more comfortable in hospital. 

• Cubicles to allow children and their family privacy on the ward. 

More and clearer information needed  

Clearly the proposed changes to children’s heart surgery services are still in 

development stage. The results from the survey indicate that there is a large 

amount of support for the proposed changes but there is a need for more 

information.  

The discussions held at our conference underline the need for more 

information. Given that this is a pre-consultation survey this is understandable, 

and the results will be valuable in indicating what information those affected 

need, and what needs to be taken into consideration when developing the 

proposals.  

While there is a majority support for the changes, we must remember that 

there is also a minority who are not supportive who are particularly concerned 

 

 

 

Key characteristics for 
accommodation 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Programme still at early 
stage 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 18



15 

about the impact of the changes on children and families. The findings from the 

survey suggest that which treatment centre a parent currently attends may 

influence their opinions of the proposals.  

We need to work with parents from the most concerned centres in order to 

allow them to raise their concerns and see how they might be addressed. 

However, it is also important to ensure parents are aware what the boundaries 

of the consultation are, i.e. what is open for negotiation, what may change 

based on their input, and what is not open to discussion.  

The strong undercurrent of concern is evident in the discussion groups where 

some participants were convinced that the changes will be bad for quality of 

care for their child. 

Both the survey results and the discussion groups show some of these 

concerns are also shared by those who are more supportive of the proposed 

changes. Being as clear as possible as soon as possible about how many 

centres will remain open and where they will be, what services will remain 

locally, what support will be available for parents and how communication 

between local services and the centres will help greatly. 

The main areas that will need to be addressed in the consultation are: suitable 

accommodation, childcare for other children, travel costs and arranging time off 

work. These are also areas where parents and carers who already travel a 

distance which requires an overnight stay are likely to require support, even if 

the centre numbers do not change.  

CHF’s view of a good service (see slide 14) 

Finally, I thought I would leave you with our thoughts on what a good service 

looks like and remind you, amidst discussions on hub and spokes and whether 

a surgical unit is the centre of a heart service or not, that in fact the real centre 

are our heart children. The service needs to be designed around them.  

Heart children, particularly those with complex conditions need good access to 

a cardiology service that has active involvement from paediatricians and which 

is willing and able communicate well with the other services that feature in that 

child’s life. Heart Surgery is only part, admittedly at time a very major part of 

that support and I have expanded that service in my diagram because that it 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Child-centred 

 

 

 

 

Cardiology and 
paediatrics are key 

Page 19



16 

was we are talking about today, but it is the cardiology service that is 

responsible for the ongoing care and it needs to be the cardiology service that 

needs to be closer to the family of a heart-child. 

Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Report of the Head of Scrutiny and Member Development 

Report to the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Yorkshire and the 
Humber) 

Date: 29 September 2011 

Subject:  Review of Children’s Congenital Heart Services in England: Final Report 
(draft) 

Are specific electoral Wards affected?    Yes   No 

If relevant, name(s) of Ward(s): 
  

Are there implications for equality and diversity and cohesion and 
integration? 

  Yes   No 

Is the decision eligible for Call-In?   Yes   No 

Does the report contain confidential or exempt information?   Yes   No 

If relevant, Access to Information Procedure Rule number: Not applicable 

Appendix number: Not applicable 

 
Summary of main issues  
 
1. The Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee (HOSC) for Yorkshire and the 

Humber forms the statutory overview and scrutiny body to consider the future 
proposals of Children’s Congenital Heart Services in England and proposed 
reconfiguration of designated surgical centres.  Such consideration includes the 
potential impact of proposals on children and families across Yorkshire and the 
Humber region.   
 

2. Proposals around the future of Children’s Congenital Heart Services in England were 
launched for public consultation on 1 March 2011. As part of this public consultation, 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees have been given until 5 October 2011 to 
respond to the proposals.   

 
3. The Joint HOSC has considered a wide range of evidence and heard from a number of 

witnesses during its consideration of the proposed changes.   
 
4. This report seeks to present a draft final report (to follow) which sets out the Joint 

HOSC’s response to proposed changes to Children’s Congenital Heart Services in 
England and the reconfiguration of designated surgical centres. 

 
Recommendations 
 
5. Members are asked to consider and amend or agree the draft final report, as 

appropriate, for submission to the Joint Committee of Primary Care Trusts (JCPCT). 

 Report author:  Steven Courtney 

Tel:  24 74707 

Agenda Item 7

Page 29



 

 

1.0  Purpose of this report 
 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to present a draft final report which sets out the Joint 

HOSC’s response to proposed changes to Children’s Congenital Heart Services in 
England and the reconfiguration of designated surgical centres. 

 
2.0  Background information 
 
2.1 The Health and Social Care Act (2001), subsequently reinforced and amended by 

the NHS Act (2006) and the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health 
Act (2007), places a duty  on local NHS bodies to make arrangements to involve 
and consult patients and the public in: 

 

• Planning service provision; 

• The development of proposals for changes; and,  

• Decisions about changes to the operation of services. 
 
2.2 The requirement to consult on changes and/or developments of NHS services also 

includes a duty to consult with relevant Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees 
where the NHS Body has under consideration any proposal for a substantial 
development or variation in the provision of health services within a specific local 
authority area. 

 
2.3 In circumstances where such proposals are likely to affect a population larger than 

that covered by a single Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the Secretary of 
State (for Health) issued a Direction requiring appropriate scrutiny committees to 
convene a joint HOSC.  In this regard, local authorities across Yorkshire and the 
Humber have developed and agreed a protocol as a guide and reference point for 
such occasions.  

 
2.4 At its initial meeting on 14 March 2011, the Joint HOSC agreed its terms of 

reference, which were subsequently revised at its meeting on 2 September 2011..  
Since March 2011, the Joint HOSC has considered a wide range of evidence and 
heard from a number of witnesses during its consideration of the proposed 
changes.   

 
3.0  Main issues 

3.1 This report seeks to present a draft final report (to follow) which sets out the Joint 
HOSC’s response to proposed changes to Children’s Congenital Heart Services in 
England and the reconfiguration of designated surgical centres.   

 
3.2 The updated revised Terms of Reference (attached at Appendix 1) reflect the 

change in membership of the Joint HOSC and the amended timetable for HOSCs to 
respond to the proposals. 

 
4.0  Corporate Considerations 

4.1  Consultation and Engagement  

4.1.1 There are no specific considerations relevant to this report.   

 

Page 30



 

 

4.2  Equality and Diversity / Cohesion and Integration 

4.2.1 When considering the potential impact of the proposed changes, the Joint HOSC 
has considered a regional Health Impact Assessment (HIA) produced by the 
Yorkshire and Humber Specialised Commissioning Group (SCG) and a nationally 
commissioned Interim HIA report, produced by Mott McDonald. 

 
4.2.2 Both reports identify potential negative impacts associated with three of the 

proposed options put forward for consultation.  In particular, the HIA interim report  
produced by Mott McDonald identifies the following as vulnerable groups: 

 

• Children (under 16s)* who are the primary recipient of the services under review 
and, therefore, most sensitive to service changes; 

• People who experience socio-economic deprivation; 

• People from Asian ethnic groups, particularly those with an Indian, Pakistani, 
Bangladeshi and other Indian subcontinent heritage; 

• Mothers who smoke during pregnancy; and 

• Mothers who are obese during pregnancy; 
 

These are defined as vulnerable groups because they are more likely to need the 
services under review and, are most likely to experience disproportionate impacts. 

 
4.3  Council Policies and City Priorities 

4.3.1 There are no specific considerations relevant to this report. 

4.4  Resources and Value for Money  

4.4.1 There are no specific considerations relevant to this report.  

4.5  Legal Implications, Access to Information and Call In 

4.5.1 This report does not contain any exempt or confidential information. 

4.6  Risk Management 

4.6.1 There are no specific considerations relevant to this report. 

5.0  Conclusions 

5.1 Proposals around the future of Children’s Congenital Heart Services in England 
were launched for public consultation on 1 March 2011 and the Joint HOSC been 
given until 5 October 2011 to respond.   

5.2 The Joint HOSC has considered a wide range of evidence and heard from a 
number of witnesses during its consideration of the proposed changes.  This report 
seeks to present a draft final report which sets out the Joint HOSC’s response to the 
proposals. 

6.0  Recommendations 

6.1 Members are asked to consider and amend or agree the draft final report, as 
appropriate, for submission to the Joint Committee of Primary Care Trusts (JCPCT). 

  

Page 31



 

 

7.0  Background documents  

• A new vision for Children’s Congenital Heart Services in England (March 2011) 

 
 

Page 32


	Agenda
	6 Proposed Reconfiguration of Children's Congenital Heart Services in England: Additional Information
	1a Presentation speech - October 2009
	1b Presentation slides - October 2009

	7 Review of Children's Congenital Heart Services in England: Final Report (draft)

